
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

June 4, 2019–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.  
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the May 7, 2019 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for June, 2019.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for June, 2019.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2019-01

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioner
(BCC) for adoption, an ordinance amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map
for a Small Scale Amendment, SSA-2019-01.

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A.   Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan Annual



A.   Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan Annual
Report 2017/2018

That the Board review and recommend approval to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) the 2017/2018 Comprehensive Plan Annual Report.

 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, July 2,
2019 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office Complex, Room
104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 06/04/2019  

Agenda Item:

A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the May 7, 2019 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for June, 2019.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for June, 2019.

Attachments
Meeting Minutes May 7, 2019
6 Month Outlook
Monthly action follow up



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD QUASI-JUDICIAL REZONING

 May 7, 2019

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:36 A.M. –11:37 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Alan Gray   
Absent: Patty Hightower
  Eric Fears
  William Clay
  Stephen Opalenik
Staff Present: Allyson Lindsay, Urban Planner II

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the April 02, 201 Planning Board Rezoning and
Regualr Planning Board Meeting

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for April 2019

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for May 2019

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to approve the meeting minutes from the April 2, 2019
meeting.

  
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Eric Fears (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 

6.  Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 



7.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     Case #: Z-2019-05 ***WITHDRAWN
BY APPLICANT**

Applicant: Joe Rector/ Mullins LLC,
Agent for James Christopher
Jennings III LIving Trust

Address: 4000 Block Pine Forest Road
Property
Size:

Medium Density Residential
district (MDR) (10 du/arce)

From: Low Density Residential
district (LDR) (four du/acre)

To: Medium Density Residential
district (MDR) (10 du/arce)

  

 

B.     Case #: Z-2019-06
Applicant: June Baird Guerra, Owner
Address: 23 arthur Lane
Property
Size:

1.01 (+/-) acres

From: HDMU, High Density Mixed
use (25 du/acre)

To: HC/LI-NA, Heavy Commercial
and Light Industrial district,
prohibiting the subsequent
establishment of any
microbreweries,
microdistilleries,
microwineries, bars,
nightclubs, or adult
entertainment uses (25
du/acre)

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was to accept staffs findings of fact and to accept the applicants request
to change to Commercial. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Eric Fears (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

C.     Case #: Z-2019-07
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page,

Agent for James Christopher
Jennings III Living Trust

Address: 2400 Gulf Beach Hwy
Property
Size:

9.09 (+/-) acres

From:
HDMU, High Density
Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)

To: HC/LI-NA, Heavy Commercial
Light Industrial district.
prohibiting the subsequent
establishment of any
microbreweries,
microdistilleries,
microwineries, bars,
nightclubs, or adult
entertainment uses (25
du/acre)

  



 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Alan Gray 

Motion was made to deny the zoning change due to criterian B with no reliance
on the use of property only on the permitted use. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Eric Fears (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

8.  Discussion Item
 

A.     Locational Criteria Discussion was presented by Griffin Vickery and will bring back
as an Ordinance to a future meeting.

  

 

9.  Adjournment.
 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JUNE 2019 

(Revised 5/22/19)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing T.H. = Transmittal Hearing P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, May 7, 2019   • Z-2019-05 
• Z-2019-06 
• Z-2019-07 

 

Tuesday, June 4, 2019  SSA-2019-01  Comp Plan Annual 
Report 

Tuesday, July 2, 2019 Change the Lot of 
Record Date 

   

Tuesday, August 6, 2019     

Tuesday, September 3, 2019     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current meeting 
agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 



1 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  May 22, 2019 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for May 2019 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of March. 
Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition has not yet 
been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report preparation date. 
Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 

CPA-2019-01 - Remove Reference to Navy OLF 8 
04-02-19 PB recommended approval 
05-07-19 BCC meeting 

 
• Map Amendments: 

LSA-2018-01 
07-10-18 Applicant requested continuance to next PB  
08-07-18 PB recommended denial 
09-06-18 BCC remanded case back to PB (ON HOLD for comp plan change CPA-2018-02) 

 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
 
Accessory Structures on Pensacola Beach 
02-05-19 PB recommended approval 
03-07-19 BCC approved 
 
Remove Reference to Navy OLF 8 
04-02-19 PB recommended approval 
05-02-19 BCC meeting 
  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3363 WEST PARK PLACE 

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 
PHONE: 850-595-3475 

FAX: 850-595-3481 
www.myescambia.com 



2 
 

 
REZONING CASES 
 

 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2018-08 (on HOLD with LSA-2018-01) 

07-10-18 Applicant requested continuance to next PB meeting 
08-07-18 PB meeting ended before hearing 
09-04-18 No quorum at PB mtg 
 

2. Rezoning Case Z-2019-02 
02-05-19 PB recommended approval 
03-07-19 BCC approved 
 

3. Rezoning Case Z-2019-03 
02-05-19 PB recommended approval 
03-07-19 BCC approved 
 

4. Rezoning Case Z-2019-04 
04-02-19  PB recommended approval 
05-02-19  BCC approved 
 

5. Rezoning Case Z-2019-05 
 05-02-19  case withdrawn by applicant 
 
6.  Rezoning Case Z-2019-06 
 05-02-19  PB recommended approval 
 06-06-19  BCC meeting 
 
7. Rezoning Case Z-2019-07 
 05-02-19  PB recommended denial 
 06-06-19  BCC meetiing 
 
 
Vested Rights Case 
 
1. VRD-2019-01 

03-05-19 PB recommended approval 
04-04-19 BCC approved 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 06/04/2019  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map - SSA-2019-01
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map -
SSA-2019-01

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioner (BCC) for
adoption, an ordinance amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale
Amendment, SSA-2019-01.

BACKGROUND:
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of the County propses to
change th FLU category of a parcel on a 3.09 (+/-) acres from industrial (I) to Mixed-use
urban district.  The parcel currently has a residential structure and the applicant wish to
place another dwelling on site but due to th Industrial FLU, this is not allowed, so they
are seeking Mixed-use urban to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Comprehensive Plan, will  be filed with the Department of
State following adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the Future Land Use
map and distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Staff Analysis
Working Case File01
Draft Ordinance



SSA 2019-01 – Hope Dr 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

 
Comprehensive Plan 

Small-Scale Future Land Use Map 
Amendment Staff Analysis 

 

General Data 
 

Project Name: SSA 2019-01 
Location: 40 E Hope Dr 
Parcel #s: 21-1S-30-1101-010-038 

 
Acreage: 3.09 (+/-) acres 
Request: From Industrial (I) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) 
Applicant: Kathrine Caldwell, Owner 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board, June 4, 2019 

BCC, July 18, 2019 
 
 
 
Summary of Proposed Amendment: 

The small scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of the county proposes to 
change the FLU category of a 3.09 acre parcel from Industrial (I) to Mixed-Use Urban 
(MU-U).  The parcel can be accessed along Hope Drive, off Old Palafox Highway.  The 
zoning designation for the subject parcel is HC/LI which will allow residential 
development if the FLU change is adopted. 
 
The existing and proposed future land use categories are described in Comprehensive 
Plan policy FLU 1.3.1 and summarized as follows: 
Industrial. Intended for a mix of industrial development and ancillary office and 
commercial uses that are deemed to be compatible with adjacent or nearby properties. 
Industrial areas shall facilitate continued industrial operations within the County and 
provide jobs and employment security for present and future residents.  The listed range 
of allowable uses is Light to intensive industrial, ancillary retail and office. No new 
residential development is allowed.  
Mixed-Use Urban. Intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses while 
promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban 
land uses within the category as a whole. The MU-U FLU has a maximum residential 
density of 25 du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 2.0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SSA 2019-01 – Hope Dr 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Land Development Code FLU map amendment requirements 
Sec. 2-7.3 (e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 
(3) Compliance review.   

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an 
amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement: 
1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 

scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 

Analysis: The application cover letter states that the parcel currently has an existing 
mobile home with existing infrastructure.  Unlike the existing Industrial FLU, the 
proposed MU-U allows for residential development.  Conversion to MU-U would 
eliminate the FLU dedication of Industrial use and provide greater accommodation of 
residential uses within a mixed-use environment.  

The applicant provided no need-based justification for more residential housing.  

The “Data and Analysis Response” in the application, the analysis  refers to a 
residential development.  Single-family residential is not a permitted use within the 
existing Industrial FLU of the subject parcel and if the requested MU-U FLU is approved, 
the density would be limited to 25 du/acre. 

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies contemporary 
planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices to 
provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem or 
need. 

Analysis:  Accepting single-family residential use as the identified need, the proposed 
amendment applies appropriate planning principles by suggesting a replacement FLU 
that is both consistent with the proposed use and the same as most adjoining and 
surrounding property.   

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
[required] by Florida Statute. 

Analysis: The proposed amendment complies with all four conditions established by 
Florida Statutes, §163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small scale comprehensive plan 
amendment:  

(a) The subject 3.09-acre parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer. 



SSA 2019-01 – Hope Dr 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

(b) The amendment is the first proposed small scale amendment for calendar year 2019 
and will not exceed the cumulative maximum of 120 acres in a calendar year. 

(c) The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the Comprehensive 
Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future Land Use Map for a site-
specific small scale development activity. 

(d) The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not within a 
designated area of critical state concern. 

 

Other applicable Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies 

1. Housing 

Policy HOU 1.1.1 Residential Areas.  The Escambia County FLUM and zoning 
maps will identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment. 

Analysis:  The proposed MU-U is a suitable replacement of the existing Industrial future 
land use to accommodate the suggested residential development, and is consistent with 
the FLU of the surrounding residential development. 

2. Future Land Use 
OBJ FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations 
Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas. 

Analysis:  Mixed-Use Urban, the applicable FLU  would promote more mixed use and 
compact development for the subject parcel. 

3. Infrastructure  
Policy HOU 1.1.4 Adequate infrastructure.  To assure the sustainability of 
residential communities, Escambia County will require new residential development 
to locate where adequate infrastructure is available. 

Analysis:  The application includes documentation of potable water, wastewater, and 
solid waste services.  The site is located along a local street and within 2000 feet of a 
major collector.  The subject parcel would retain the use as single-family and would 
promote the efficient use of the available infrastructure. 

GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 



SSA 2019-01 – Hope Dr 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of such development. The Concurrency Management System will be 
determined by the provisions of the LDC. 
Potable Water.   

Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

Sanitary Sewer.   
Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the 
peak LOS will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For 
nonresidential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC), as may be recalculated by the service provider 
from time to time, and on the size of the nonresidential water meter. Escambia 
County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure that adequate 
capacity is available. 
Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
unless ECUC has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service 
to the proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the ECUA 
wastewater system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant has 
obtained the appropriate permit from the Health Department. 

Solid Waste Disposal.   
Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste 
disposal needs of the entire County. 
Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis:  The property is currently on septic tank and a well provides potable water 
supply to the parcel. The application includes information from the Escambia County 
Health Department regarding the number of dwelling on a single septic tank and further 
review will be done once additional dwellings are  approved. 

Stormwater Management. 
Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for 
such facilities as created by development or redevelopment through 
implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 



SSA 2019-01 – Hope Dr 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the 
responsibility of the developer. 

Transportation and Mobility.   
Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities.  All new private development will be 
required to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the 
LDC.  
Policy MOB 1.1.7 Access Management.  Escambia County will promote access 
management by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences 
during travel, separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be 
eliminated, and controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on 
affected roadways.  

Analysis: Any redevelopment of the subject parcel is required to comply with the current 
stormwater management, onsite parking, site access, and other applicable development 
standards of the LDC.  County compliance review of any redevelopment plan would be 
required prior to plan approval.  

4. Protected Resources   
Wellheads.   

Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and 
future public water supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead 
protection areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited 
activities and materials, within those areas. 

Analysis: The subject parcel is approximately half a mile from the nearest public 
potable water wellhead, outside of any wellhead protection area. 

Historically Significant Sites.   
Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance. Escambia County shall utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in 
the identification of archaeological and/or historic sites or structures within the 
County.  The County will utilize guidance, direction and technical assistance 
received from this agency to develop provisions and regulations for the 
preservation and protection of such sites and structures. In addition, the County 
will utilize assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the 
University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered historic or 
archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to determine 
the significance of the resource. 

Analysis:  The applicant provided documentation of a referenced request made to 
Florida Master Site File, Division of Historical Resources stating there are no previously-
recorded cultural resources within the project area.  

Wetlands and Habitat. 



SSA 2019-01 – Hope Dr 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators. Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County 
Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
(FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands 
or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development approval. 

Urban Forest. 
Policy CON 1.6.4 Urban Forest Management. Escambia County will, through 
LDC provisions and other measures, sustain and promote the urban forest.  

Analysis: There are no indications from the available National Wetland Inventory map 
that wetlands are on the subject parcel.  Any future development will be analyzed for 
compliance with all applicable environmental regulations prior to the issuance of 
development plan approval. 
 
The Proposed Plan amendment discourages urban sprawl by incorporating a 
development pattern or urban form that achieves the following: 
 

1. The proposed development would direct growth that will not have an adverse 
impact on natural resources and ecosystems. 

2. The proposed amendment would efficiently promote the extension of the 
existing residential use. 

3. The change in the FLU would allow flexibility in the mixed-use land use and the 
residential zoning districts not currently allowed in the Industrial future land use. 

4. The parcel of land is currently Industrial FLU and substantially surrounded by 
heavy commercial and light industrial zoning. Changing the FLU to Mixed-Use 
Urban would allow the residential need for the parcel. 



 
 
 

SSA-2019-01 



PIT TMA N
AVE

INTERSTATE 10

W BURGESS RD

E OLIVE RD

SON
GBIRD

DR

CE DRUS L N

SLOANCIR

TREESWA
L LOW DR

INTERSTATE 10

W HOPE DR

CO
RO

N E
T

DR

WINGFOOT WAY

INTERSTA T E

10
RAM

P

N PALAFOX ST

ARBOR AVE

BROAD ST

E BURGES S RD

SEARS
BLVD

FLAGLER DR

W PINE STE AD RD

HAMPTON
RD

ALFONSO
S T

TERRY DR

AC
RE

S
CI

R

WAGNER

RD

W
IN

OD
EE

 R
D

D IAMONDDAIRY RD

SAL E M DR
SALEM

DR

DALE
ST

D EB ORAH
LN

W HOPE DR

FAM
I L Y LN

BR
IE

SE
 LN

CH
IC

KA
DE

E
P A

SS

SISK IN
LN

FLORC ITA
DR

DARTM
O

OR
DR

IVES PL

HOUSE ST

CR
YS

T A
L

W
E L

LS
PL

C O
RO

N E
T

DR

BE
AV

ER
CI

R

CHIQUI T A DR

TOWER DR

AL
EX

IA
AV

E

SL
OA

N 
CI

R

FULTON
A VE

VI
CK

IE
ST

BA IRD S T

MEYER
WAY

SEARS
BLVD

CRE EKVIEW
DR

APPOMATTOX
DR

O AK

FOR E S T DR
LA

S
V E

G
AS

LN

OW
EN

S S
T

C O
BB

L N

MAZURE

K BL VD

PENSACOLA

BLVD

MA
XA

M 
ST

TO
W

ER
TE

R

SH
OR

T
DR

TOD DDR

VICKERY RD

AP
PL

E
ST

CO
OP

ER
 D

R

PENSACOLA
BLVD

FA
ITH DR

JEFFERY LN

PI
NU

S
LN

C A INA VE

DEBORA
H

DR

PARA
KE

ET
T RL

HOYTST

E HOP E
D R

CLYDE
ST

NE
OA

KF
IE

LD
R D

SUNNY LN

CAPITOL

BLVD

MYRTLEWOOD DR

TAFT  DR

LAMBERT

ST

WHITEH EA DDR

AUSTIN ST

N
A

L O CREEK LO
OP

CORA LN

KELSON RD

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE 10
RAMP

SNOW
 RD

VERA ST

TRAMMEL BLVD

OVERLOOK DR

INTER STATE
10 RAMPINT ER STA

TE 10
RAM

P

S E ARS BLVD

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

SSA-2019-01
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



HC/LI

HDMU

HC/LI

Ind

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI
HC/LI

HC/LI

MDR

E OLIVE RD

N PALAFOX ST

S E ARSB LVD

INTERSTATE 10

SEARS BLVD

CREEKVIEW DR

W HOPE DR

INTERSTATE 10

WHITE HEAD DR

SEARS BLVD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2019-01
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



E OLIVE RD

N PALAFOX ST

SE ARSB LVD

INTERSTATE 10

SEARS BLVD

CREEKVIEW DR

W HOPE DR

INTERSTATE 10

WHITEHEAD DR

SEARS BLVD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2019-01
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

COM
MH PARK

VAC VAC
COMT

COMCOM

COM

COM



C

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

I

I

I

I

I

I

MU-U
C

E OLIVE RD

N PALAFOX ST

S E ARSB LVD

INTERSTATE 10

SEARS BLVD

CREEKVIEW DR

W HOPE DR

INTERSTATE 10

WHITE HEAD DR

SEARS BLVD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2019-01
EXISTING FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



C

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

I

I

I

I

I

I

MU-U
C

MU-U

E OLIVE RD

N PALAFOX ST

S E ARSB LVD

INTERSTATE 10

SEARS BLVD

CREEKVIEW DR

W HOPE DR

INTERSTATE 10

WHITE HEAD DR

SEARS BLVD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2019-01
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



ENSLEY

ENSLEY

ENSLEY

ENSLEY

ENSLEY

OAKFIELD
OAKFIELD

E OLIVE RD

N PALAFOX ST

S E ARSB LVD

INTERSTATE 10

SEARS BLVD

CREEKVIEW DR

W HOPE DR

INTERSTATE 10

WHITE HEAD DR

SEARS BLVD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2019-01
CRA MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



N PALAFOX ST

SEARS
BLVD

SEARS
BLVD

E HOPE D R

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 150 300 450

Ft

SSA-2019-01
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public hearing sign



Looking onto subject property



Another view of subject
property



Looking northeast onto 
subject parcel



Looking west at MH park 
from subject property; 



Looking southwest toward Old 
Palafox from subject parcel on

Hope Dr



Looking northeast along Hope 
Dr  from subject parcel 



Intersection of Hope Dr 
and Old Palafox



ESCAMBIA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT
3363West ParkPlace, Pensacola, FL 32505 (850)595-3475

FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION
(Revised 06/05/17)

INSTRUCTIONS

Please contact our office at (595-3475) to make an appointment with a Planner to personally
discuss yoursite and prospective plansfor it, and to review the application form with youto answer
any questions you may have.

It is important for the application packet to be complete and on time in order to process and
schedule your request for the required public hearing(s). The Planning Board holds public
hearings once a month. Application closing dates for these hearings are provided in the attached
schedule (Attachment A). In order for your application to move through the process in a timely
manner, it is important for aH items on the application to be completed. Incorrect or missing
information could delay the hearing of your request. NOTE: The applicant, or his/her agent must
be present at the Planning Board meeting. It is also highly recommended that he or she be present
at the subseguent Board of County Commissioners meeting.

An application is not considered complete until all of the items listed on the Future Land
Use Map Amendment Application Checklist (attached herein) are received.

Please note the completion and notarized certification(s) required herein. The owner and/or agent
acting in his/her behalf, must sign the certification(s) where indicated on the application.
Signatures must be properly notarized. If an agent is handling the request, the owner must sign
the application and submit an Affidavit of Ownership & Limited Power of Attorney (attached
herein) authorizing said agent to act in his/her behalf.

FEES: Application fees can be found on the Escambia County website at:
https://mvescambia.com/our-services/development-services/planning-zoning/rezoning/planning-
board/planning-board-forms

Please remember, the Planning Board meets only once a month. Applications received
after the deadline for a particular meeting will not be heard until the following meeting.

NOTE: Whenever an applicant would like any County Staff member to appear and testify at a
hearing other than the normal public hearings required to process your request, a minimum
notification of5-10days to the individual staffmember and the Development Services Department
is required in advance of the hearing.

FLUPagelof8







































Recorded in Public Records 8/2/2017 4:32 PM OR Book 7754 Page 1111,
Instrument #2017059374, Pam Childers Clerk of the Circuit Court Escambia
(^ounty, FLRecording $27.00 Deed Stamps $5,600.00

*

y

CONSIDERATION $800,000.00
DOC TAX $5,600.00

RECORD $27.00

PARCEL ID NO.: 211S301101007038

Prepared by and return to:
Williams Parker Harrison Dietz & Getzen
200South OrangeAvenue
Sarasota, Florida 34236

(941)366-4800

Attention: James L.Turner, Esq.

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

THIS INDENTURE, made July 31,2017 by and between WOODRIDGE, LLC, a dissolved
Florida limited liability company, hereinafter referred to as Grantor, whose post office
address is 226 East Government Street, Pensacola, FL 32502, and FLORIDA MHC, LLC, a
Florida limited liability company, hereinafter referred to as Grantee, whose post office
address is98 Mill Plain Road, Ste. 3C, Danbury, CT 06811.

WITNESSETH: Grantor, in consideration of the sum of ten dollars and other valuable
considerations to it in hand paid by Grantee, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
does hereby grant, bargain, sell and convey to Grantee, his heirs and assigns forever, the
following described property situate in Escambia County, Florida:

Commence at the North line of Hope Drive (Old Olive-Ferry Pass Road)
and the East R/W line of Palafox Highway (SR 95); thence run Northerly
along said East R/W line for 210.0 feet to the Point of Beginning: Thence
continue Northerly along said East R/W line for 202.50 feet; thence run
Easterly at right angle for 148.00 feet; thence run Northerly at right angle
for 151.0 feet; thence runWesterly at right angle for 148.0 feet tosaid East
R/W line of Palafox Highway; thence run Northerly along said East R/W
line for 222.50 feet; thence deflect 122 Degrees 10'59" Right and run 1191.46
feet; thence deflect 57 Degrees 41'46" Right and run 314.23 feet; thence
deflect 99 Degrees 1T15" right for 812.11 feet; thence deflect 80 Degrees 50'
Right and run 210.0 feet; thence deflect 80 Degrees 15* Left and run 210.0
feet to the Point of Beginning; lying in Section 21, Township 1South, Range
30West,Escambia County,Florida.

LESS & EXCEPT

Commence at the intersection of the East R/W line of Palafox Highway (SR
95), 66' R/W and the North R/W line of Hope Drive (40' R/W); thence run

Page 1 of3

http://dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWebl .4.6.134//Document/GetDocumentForPrint... 5/21/2019













 

 

 

   

RON DESANTIS 

Governor 

 

LAUREL M. LEE 

Secretary of State 

 

 
Division of Historical Resources 

R.A. Gray Building • 500 South Bronough Street• Tallahassee, Florida  32399 

850.245.6300 • 850.245.6436 (Fax)  FLHeritage.com 

 

 

 

 

Katherine Caldwell                         April 18, 2019 

40 East Hope Drive 

Pensacola, Florida 32534 
 

 

RE: DHR Project File No.: 2019-2226 Received by DHR: April 18, 2019 

Project: 40 East Hope Dr. Pensacola, FL 

 County: Escambia 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Our office has reviewed the above referenced project and provided comments as part of a Due Diligence 

review in anticipation of state and federal permitting applications.  Please note that our comments may change 

if other information is presented for this project during the state or federal permitting process that indicates it 

may effect historic properties.  

 

A review of the Florida Master Site File indicates that there are no previously-recorded cultural resources 

within the project area (Tax Parcel ID# 211S301101010038). Based on the information provided, it is the 

opinion of this office that the proposed project is unlikely to affect historic properties. However, unexpected 

finds may occur during ground disturbing activities, and we request that the permit, if issued, should include 

the following special condition regarding inadvertent discoveries: 

 

• If prehistoric or historic artifacts, such as pottery or ceramics, projectile points, dugout canoes, metal 

implements, historic building materials, or any other physical remains that could be associated with 

Native American, early European, or American settlement are encountered at any time within the 

project site area, the permitted project shall cease all activities involving subsurface disturbance in the 

vicinity of the discovery. The applicant shall contact the Florida Department of State, Division of 

Historical Resources, Compliance Review Section at (850)-245-6333. Project activities shall not 

resume without verbal and/or written authorization. In the event that unmarked human remains are 

encountered during permitted activities, all work shall stop immediately and the proper authorities 

notified in accordance with Section 872.05, Florida Statutes.  

 

If you have any questions, please contact Kristen Hall, Historic Sites Specialist, by email at 

Kristen.Hall@dos.myflorida.com, or by telephone at 850.245.6342 or 800.847.7278. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Timothy A Parsons, Ph.D. 
Director, Division of Historical Resources  

& State Historic Preservation Officer 



PENSACOLA

OLIVE

HOPE

INTERSTATE 10

PALAFOX

ARBOR

CAROLINA

BROAD

SEARS

PIT
TM

AN

TERRY

DIAMOND DAIRY

SU
NN

Y
AC

RE
SJONES

HOPE

FLORCITA

TOWER

CORA
COBB

MYRTLEWOOD

PENSACOLA

BURGESS

FELIZ

EA
RL

Y

LA
S V

EG
AS

OW
EN

S

VIC
KI

E

MA
XA

M

TO
WE

R

TODD

CHARLESTON

SUNNY

CH
AR

ITY

CO
OP

ER

SH
AM

RO
CK

FA
ITH

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

PIN
US

CAIN

CO
BB

HOPE

WE
ST

MO
NT

CO
BB

CAROLINA

BEAVER

AUSTIN

FLAGLER

INTERSTATE 10

BR
IES

E

INT
ER

ST
AT

E 1
0

SNOW

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

88

HC/LI

HDMU

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

MDR

HC/LI

HDMU

HC/LI

MDR

HC/LI
MDR

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HDMU

HDMU

HC/LI

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

HC/LI

MDR

HDMU

HC/LI

MDR

MDR

MDR

HDMU

HDMU

HC/LI

HC/LI

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

HC/LI
HDMU

HC/LI
HC/LI

MDR

HDMU

MDR

MDR
MDR

MDR

HDMU

HC/LI

HDMU

Ind HC/LI

HC/LI

HDMU

HC/LI

HC/LI HC/LI

HDMU

HDMU

HC/LI

HDMU
HDMU

HDMU

HC/LI

HC/LI

HDMU

Com

HC/LI

HC/LI

MDR

MDR

HC/LI

MDR

HDMU
HC/LI

MDR

HC/LI

0 370 740 1,110 1,480185
Feet

40 E Hope 
21-1S-30-1101-010-038

.



DATA AND ANALYSIS 

Utility Services (Sanitary Sever, Solid Waste, Potable Water) 
The property is currently using the existing roads.  We are not using county water 
or sewer (ECUA); we are on septic and have a well.  We have spoken with Joe 
Hardin, at the Health Department regarding the requirements for adding 3 
manufactured homes, should the change for the new future zoning be 
accomplished. We are aware of several options and prepared to comply with all 
necessary documents and requirements for the Health Department regarding the 
sewer and well.  Per Joe Hardin, at the Health Department, we will not be 
maximizing the land adding the 3 homes or adding if needed 3 septic tanks. 
Stormwater Management 
There will be no need for a Stormwater Management plan as the property is 
currently being used for residential dwellings. 
Traffic 
The change in the future land use will not have an affect on traffic as the land is 
currently and will remain residential dwelling, therefore no increase in traffic. 
Recreation and Open Space 
There is no need for recreation and open space since this is for single-family 
residential. 
Schools 
The proposed change in the future land use will not impact the capacity of the area 
schools. 
 
The need for the Future Land Use change is because the current land use is 
Industrial that does not allow for residential. There is currently our home on site 
and we want to add an additional home so we request a change to mixed use urban 
land use. 
Proximity to and impact on the following: 
Wellheads:  Please see attached wellhead map as it will show we are outside of 
both wellheads. 
Historical:  Please see attached email to the Division of Historical Resources 
Natural Resources:  Land is outside of wellheads, map is attached. 
 



 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

40 E. Hope Drive 

FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency.   New development and redevelopment in 
unincorporated Escambia County will be consistent with the Plan and the FLUM. 
Response:  If this application is approved the proposed new Future Land Use will 
be consistent with existing residential use of the property.  The land is currently 
being used as residential, as Mixed Use this would incorporate the current 
residential use, but would allow for retail, office, etc. The land is currently on a 
dead-end street and a mobile home park, though grandfathered in, is in front of the 
property. 
FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas.  To promote 
the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the 
County will encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize 
development densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, 
and Industrial Future Land Use categories (with the exception of residential 
development) 
Response: The property is currently using the existing roads, utilities and service 
that are in place. We have spoken to addressing and that is a simple process as 
well, once this future rezoning should be approved. We have reached out to David 
Hill, the engineer at Gulf Power to understand what will need to be completed for 
this expansion, as well. 
CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has adopted and 
will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils Survey, 
and the FFWCC Land Satellite (LANDSAT) imagery as indicators of the potential 
presence of wetlands or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for 
development approval. 
Response:  The County soils and wetland map did not identify wetlands on the 
property. 
CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection.  Escambia County will provide comprehensive 
wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future public 
water supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection areas and 
address incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, 
within those areas 



Response:  The attached maps identified wellhead protection zones in the area, but 
the property is outside of these protection zones. 
 

Sec.2-7.3 Comprehensive Plan 2Future Land Use and Text Amendments 
a. General Amendment Conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive 

Plan shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where 
an amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement. 

1. Need and Benefit. There is an identified land use need particular to the 
scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 

Response:  To make the property being used for residential consistent with the 
FLU and by changing from Industrial to Mixed Use Urban will accomplish this 
goal. 
2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies planning 

principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices to provide 
an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem or need. 

Response:  The proposed change would apply appropriate planning principles 
to the land currently used as residential. 

 
b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 

conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
by Florida Statute. 

Analysis:  The proposed amendment complies with all four conditions 
established by Florida Statutes, 163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small-scale 
comprehensive plan amendment: 
a. The parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer.  This property is 3.09 acres which 

is under 10 acres for a small-scale map change. 
b. The amendment is the first proposed small-scale amendment for calendar 

year 2019 and will not exceed the cumulative maximum of 120 acres in a 
calendar year per the planning department. 

c. The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the 
Comprehensive Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future 
Land Use Map for a site-specific small-scale development activity. 



d. The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not within a 
designated area of critical state concern. 

 

In the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, FLU 1.3.1 
 

FLUM Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U)  

General Description: Intended for an intense mix of residential and non-
residential uses while promoting compatible infill development and the 
separation of urban and suburban land uses within the category as a whole. 
Range of Allowable Uses: 
Residential, retail and services, professional office, light industrial, recreational 
facilities, public and civic, limited agriculture.  
With just the total of 4 homes on the lot there is plenty of land for a variety of 
opportunities. In the future as the area continues to grow zoned as a Mixed Use 
this would allow an assortment of potential uses for the land and ability to meet 
its surroundings. 

 



PB : 06-04-19 Page 1 
Re: SSA-2019-01 
Draft 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2019-___ 1 
 2 
 3 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART II OF THE 4 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY 5 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE 6 
FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN 7 
AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE 8 
LAND USE CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 1S, RANGE 9 
30W, PARCEL NUMBERS 1101-010-038, TOTALING 3.09 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED ON  10 
E. HOPE ST, FROM INDUSTRIAL (I) TO MIXED USE URBAN (MU-U) PROVIDING FOR 11 
A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 12 
CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 13 

 14 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted 15 
its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  16 
 17 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 18 
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 19 
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 20 
 21 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 22 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve changes 23 
(amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 24 
 25 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 26 
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  27 
 28 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 29 
Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 30 
 31 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent 32 
 33 
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and to exercise the 34 
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 35 
Florida Statutes. 36 
 37 
Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 38 
 39 
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Small Scale Amendment 2019-40 
01."   41 
 42 
 43 
 44 



PB : 06-04-19 Page 2 
Re: SSA-2019-01 
Draft 1 

 

Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 1 
 2 
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 3 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030, 4 
as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations, 5 
references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following 6 
future land use changes: 7 
 8 

A parcel within Section 21, Township 1S, Range 30W, parcel number 1101-9 
010-038, totaling 3.09 (+/-) acres, located on East Hope Drive, as more 10 
particularly described in the Boundary Survey description produced by 11 
Northwest Florida Land Surveying, registered land surveyor Fred R. 12 
Thompson dated 7/02/2015, attached as Exhibit A, from Industrial (I) to 13 
Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).  14 

 15 

Section 4.     Severability 16 
 17 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 18 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 19 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 20 
 21 
Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 22 
 23 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 24 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the 25 
sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 26 
relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 27 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 

 34 
 35 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 



PB : 06-04-19 Page 3 
Re: SSA-2019-01 
Draft 1 

 

Section 6.  Effective Date  1 
 2 
 3 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 4 
 5 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2019. 6 
 7 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 8 
    OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 9 

 10 
  11 

      By: _________________________________ 12 
Lumon J. May, Chairman  13 

 14 
ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 15 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 16 
 17 
 18 
By: ___________________________    19 

Deputy Clerk  20 
 21 
(SEAL) 22 
 23 
 24 
ENACTED: 25 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 26 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  27 



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 06/04/2019  
Issue: Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan Annual

Report 2017/2018
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan Annual Report 2017/2018

That the Board review and recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners
(BCC) the 2017/2018 Comprehensive Plan Annual Report.

BACKGROUND:
As required by the Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvement Element, the
Comprehensive Plan Implementation Committee (CPIC) provides an annual report of the
status of growth management activities and the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to
the Planning Board. The Planning Board reviews the report and makes
recommendations to the BCC for use during its deliberations on the annual budget and
CIP.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the approval of this report.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this report.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This Annual Report is prepared in accordance with the requirements contained in
various sections of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Development Services Department will distribute copies to all County Departments



The Development Services Department will distribute copies to all County Departments
and make them available to interested citizens, after BCC approval.

Development Services Department staff has coordinated development of the Annual
report with all CPIC members.

Attachments
Comp Plan Annual Report 2017_2018



 

 
 
 

   
 

 
                                               

 
 
 
A Report of the 
Comprehensive Plan Implementation Committee and the Planning Board to the 
Escambia County Board of County Commissioners 
 
May 16, 2019 

 

Escambia County 

Comprehensive Plan 

Implementation 

Annual Report 2017/2018 



 

Page | 2  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements contained 
in various sections of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, which requires 
reporting of certain data and information related to growth on an annual basis. 
 
The purpose and intent of the Annual Report is to provide a yearly planning tool for 
monitoring and evaluating future implementation of the Escambia County 
Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan contains policies and objectives 
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners to provide for “orderly growth 
management” and to “maintain and improve the quality of life for all citizens of the 
county”. 
 
The Board of County Commissioners (BCC) adopted the 2030 Comprehensive Plan on 
February 2015 and the Florida Legislature adopted changes to Chapter 163 Florida 
Administrative Code in July, 2011. 
 
As a result of the adopted 2030 Comprehensive Plan the following elements were to be 
included within the Comprehensive Plan Annual Report for 2017/2018: 
 
General Requirements- Mobility Element, Housing Element, Coastal Management 
Element and Intergovernmental Coordination. 
 

This report was prepared by the Development Services Department. 

  



 

Page | 3  

 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 
 

JACK R. BROWN, County Administrator 

AMY L. LOVOY, Assistant County Administrator 

MATT COUGHLIN, Assistant County Administrator 

HORACE L. JONES, Development Services Director 

JOY JONES, P.E., Public Works Director 

J. TAYLOR “CHIPS” KIRSCHENFELD, Natural Resources Management Director 

STEPHAN D. HALL, Budget Manager, Budget Office 

MIKE D. WEAVER, Public Safety Director 

PATRICK T. GRACE, Fire Chief 

TAMYRA JARVIS, Corrections Director 

PAOLO GHIO, Executive Director/Director of Environmental and Developmental 

Services, Santa Rosa Island Authority 

 

Annual Report Prepared By: 

Development Services Department 

ALLYSON LINDSAY, Urban Planner II 

CALEB MACCARTEE, Urban Planner II 

JOHN FISHER, Senior Planner 

JUAN LEMOS, Senior Planner 

  



 

Page | 4  

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENT 
 
1.0 MOBILITY ELEMENT 
 
Interlocal Agreement.......................................................................5 
 
Infrastructure Impact Report..........................................................5 
 
Annual Assessment........................................................................ 5-7 
 
2.0 HOUSING 
 
Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation..........................................8 
 
3.0 COASTAL MANAGEMENT ELEMENT 
 
Development Impact Analysis.......................................................9 
 
Intergovernmental Task Force...................................................... 9 
 
Beach and Shoreline Regulations................................................ 10 
 
Population Projections....................................................................11 
 
4.0 INTERGOVENMENTAL COORDINATION 
 

Growth and Development Trends.................................................12-13 

  



 

Page | 5  

 

 

1.0  MOBILITY ELEMENT 

MOB 4.2.3 Interlocal Agreement.  An interlocal agreement to determine the details of 
the coordination between the Navy and Escambia County shall include, but not be 
limited to, the individual responsibilities of the County and the Navy;  the method by 
which the navy will appoint a Planning Board representative; the length of the term of 
appointment; the details of the coordination required to produce, receive and transmit 
any Navy comments to the State; establish who will be responsible for forwarding the 
comments; the method by which the Navy will apprise the County of any available 
grants and the details to be reported on the Annual Report on Comprehensive Plan 
Implementation.  The Military Interlocal Agreement became effective September 2003. 
 
The Interlocal agreement was reviewed for compliance and approved by the County 
Administrator and current Board of County Commissioners in December 2015. All joint 
projects that will be addressed by the County and the Navy will meet the requirements 
of the Interlocal agreement.  The Navy’s representative continues to participate in the 
decision making process of the Planning Board.   
 
MOB 4.2.7 Infrastructure Impact Report. A formal information exchange between the 
County, FDOT, Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA), and other utility service 
providers in the area will be established to explore the growth-inducing impacts of utility 
expansion and infrastructure improvements within the AIPD overlay areas in relation to 
the JLUS recommendations. Annual reporting of the status of the planned utility 
expansion and infrastructure improvements will be included in the Comprehensive Plan 
Implementation Annual Report. 
 
The calculations used during this reporting period with the AIPD Overlay Areas will be 
used as the baseline figures to track utility and infrastructure improvements in future 
reports. 
 
MOB 4.2.8 Annual Assessment. Pursuant to Florida Statutes and beginning in Fiscal 
Year 2004/2005, the County will conduct an annual assessment of the effectiveness of 
the criteria adopted pursuant to Florida Statutes, in achieving compatibility with military 
installations in areas designated as AIPDs. This assessment will be based on a 
compilation of data for the calendar year and will compare the current year’s 
development with the previous years’ development relevant to the following in each 
AIPD: 
 
a. Single-family residential building permits in each AIPD area based on the number of 
permits issued and broken down by APZ and AIPD area. 
 
b. Number of residential units (high density) approved and permitted. 
 
c. Extension of sewer and water lines in the AIPD Overlay areas as reported by ECUA 
(or relevant potable water distributors). 
 



 

Page | 6  

 

d. Number of units approved in preliminary and final subdivision plats. 
 
e. Number of site plans for commercial projects approved. 
 
f. Number of communication towers approved. 
 
g. Number of variances and/or conditional use requests and approvals. 
 
h. Number of rezoning requests/approvals. 
 
i. Number of future land use amendments. 
 
The intent is to measure the increase or decrease in residential development activity 
within the AIPDs to determine the effectiveness of the measures adopted to control 
residential density and encourage commercial development, as recommended by the 
JLUS. The County will review the collected data to ensure compliance with the intent of 
the JLUS recommendations. In addition, an analysis of the collected data over a period 
of time will assist in determining what future changes may be required to enhance or 
improve the County’s efforts to control encroachment on the military installations. The 
reports will be included in the Annual Comprehensive Plan Implementation Report and 
will be further analyzed for inclusion in the Evaluation and Appraisal of the 
Comprehensive Plan required every seven years. 
  



 

Page | 7  

 

 

 

  

P
la

n
n

in
g

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

 

Z
o

n
e
 

 

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
 

U
n

it
s
 A

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 

in
 P

re
li
m

 P
la

ts
 

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
 

U
n

it
s
 A

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 

In
 F

in
a
l 
P

la
ts

 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

S
it

e
 

P
la

n
s

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
B

ld
g

 

P
la

n
s

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e
 

P
la

n
s

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

T
o

w
e
rs

 

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
a
l 
U

s
e

 

R
e
z
o

n
e
 A

p
p

ro
v

a
l 

F
u

tu
re

 L
a
n

d
 U

s
e

 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 

AIPD-1 
AREA 

A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
AREA 

B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 APZ-1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 

 
APZ-1 
NASP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 APZ-2 0 61 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 

 
APZ-2 
NASP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 CZ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

  0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-2  272 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 

AIPD-1 
AREA 

B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-2  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 



 

Page | 8  

 

 

2.0 HOUSING ELEMENT 
 
HOU 1.6.1 Program Information. Escambia County will continue its housing outreach 
program to assure dissemination of housing information. 
 
HOU 1.6.5 State and Federal Assistance. Escambia County will participate in 
affordable housing programs as made available by the state, federal, or other 
appropriate agencies. 
 
HOU 1.6.6 Neighborhood Enterprise Division. Escambia County will provide 
affordable homeownership and home repair assistance opportunities for moderate, low, 
and very low-income homebuyers and homeowners. 
 
HOU 1.6.7 SHIP Fund Initiatives. Escambia County will use State Housing Initiatives 
Partnership (SHIP) Program funds to expand and/or enhance ongoing activities 
designed to develop new affordable housing initiatives conforming to the statutory 
requirements of Florida 
Statutes. 
  



 

Page | 9  

 

 

OBJ COA 1.3 Population Evacuation  

 

COA 1.3.8 Development Impact Analysis. The Comprehensive Plan Implementation 

Annual Report will include an analysis of proposed and new developments’ impact on 

hurricane evacuation times. The BCC, upon receipt of the report from the LPA, will 

address any deficiencies identified in the report and take corrective measures as 

necessary. The report and recommendations will consider the actual development that 

has occurred during the evaluation period (preceding 12 months) as well as the 

projected development anticipated to be approved during the succeeding evaluation 

period. The needed corrective actions by the BCC will maintain or reduce the County’s 

adopted roadway clearance time. 

The Florida Division of Emergency Management, Division of Community Planning and 

Department of Transportation, in coordination with the WFRPC, have developed the 

Florida Statewide Regional Evacuation Study Program for the West Florida Region. 

This report updates the region’s evacuation population estimates, evacuation clearance 

times and public shelter demands. Originally released on October 5, 2010, the study 

covers Bay, Escambia, Holmes, Okaloosa, Santa Rosa, Walton and Washington 

counties and their respective municipalities, and is updated as needed. There is multiple 

County and State transportation projects that take into account the State mandated 

evacuation times, as part of their development, based on the established regional 

evacuation modeling process. In coordination between Emergency Management, Traffic 

and Development Services departments, the County strives to maintain pre-established 

roadway clearing times for evacuation. A copy of the Evacuation Study can be viewed in 

its entirety at this location: http://www.wfrpc.org/programs/evacuation-study 

COA 1.4.6 Intergovernmental Task Force. An Intergovernmental Task Force, as 

outlined in the Post Disaster Redevelopment Plan, will foster cooperation between local 

governments during pre-disaster planning, post-disaster mitigation analysis, and 

redevelopment. Additionally, the task force will be activated and mobilized for a 

minimum of 60 days following a disaster declaration. The task force will make 

recommendations concerning pre-disaster planning, post-disaster mitigation analysis, 

and redevelopment for inclusion in the Comprehensive Plan Implementation Annual 

Report of every fiscal year during which it was mobilized. 

 

Projects related to the April 29, 2014 Flood Event Escambia County has worked on: 

85 completed out of 86 - FEMA Projects (# Project Worksheets – Federal Emergency 

Management Agency); 1 FEMA project is still active. 

http://www.wfrpc.org/programs/evacuation-study


 

Page | 10  

 

 

5 of the 6 are ongoing- HMGP Projects (Hazard Mitigation Grant Program) were 

awarded by FDEM for FEMA grant are active ongoing projects.  

One (1) of the projects was withdrawn due to acquisition failure. One (1) is a Global 

Match Project utilized to leverage as match funding. One (1) is awaiting grant 

modification to initiate. 

19 completed out of 19 projects - FHWA/FDOT Projects (Florida Highway 

Administration / Florida Department of Transportation. 

7 out of 7 completed- NRCS (Natural Resource Conservation Service) Emergency 

Watershed Protection Projects. As of October 2017, all 7 have completed construction 

and the County has been reimbursed our portion of the grant award. 

Additional Capital Improvement Projects: 

60 complete out of 155 projects LOST funded or supplemental funding sources; 95 

projects are still active 

 

OBJ COA 2.3 Beach and Dune Protection 

 

COA 2.3.3 Beach and Shoreline Regulations. Escambia County will protect beach 

and shoreline systems. These regulating provisions will be reviewed annually for the 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation Annual Report and updated as necessary to 

address concerns and issues including, but not limited to, the following: 

a. "White Sand" regulations; 

b. Shoreline protection zone; 

c. CCCL-related regulations; 

d. Dune replenishment, enhancement, and re-vegetation programs; 

e. Wetland and environmentally sensitive area regulations. 

 

The regulating provisions have been reviewed by the environmental staff and no 

updates were necessary. The most recent update, in 2005, established the 1975 Costal 

Construction Control Line (CCCL) as Shoreline Protection Zone 1 for construction on 

 

the south side of the Barrier Islands, fronting the Gulf of Mexico. There are numerous 

beach and shoreline projects aimed at the protection and enhancement of our natural 

resources. 

 

  



 

Page | 11  

 

 

Chapter 5 General Requirements. 

Section 5.06 Population projections. 
This ordinance is based upon permanent and seasonal population estimates and 
projections, which must either be those provided by the University of Florida’s Bureau of 
Economic and Business Research or generated by the local government based upon a 
professionally acceptable methodology. Population projections will be updated annually 
with the most current projections available. 

 

2020–2045, with Estimates for 2018 

County 
and State 

Estimates 
April 
2018 

Projections, April 1 

    2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

ESCAMBIA 318,560   

                

LOW   
314,400 319,900 322,900 323,900 323,600 322,200 

MEDIUM   
324,400 337,300 347,600 355,500 362,100 367,700 

HIGH   
333,900 355,600 375,800 393,700 409,900 424,600 

https://www.bebr.ufl.edu/sites/default/files/Research%20Reports/projections_2018.pdf  

 

  

https://www.bebr.ufl.edu/sites/default/files/Research%20Reports/projections_2018.pdf


 

Page | 12  

 

 

4.0 INTERGOVENMENTAL COORDINATION 
ICE 1.3.4 Growth and Development Trends. As per the Interlocal Agreement, the 
local governments will provide the School Board with their Comprehensive Plan 
Implementation Committee Annual Report on growth and development trends within 
their jurisdiction. To the extent feasible, the reports should be provided in a geographic 
information system-compatible format for the purpose of geo-referencing the 
information. 
This report will be in tabular, graphic, and textual formats and will include data and 
summaries as requested by the LPA. 
 

Growth & Development Trends FY 2017/2018 
 

 
 
 

DRC PROJECTS FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 

Final Plat 13 Preliminary Plat/Construction Plan 9 

Minor 
Subdivisions 8 Construction Plans 11 

Masterplan 4 Major Site Plans  79 

Preliminary Plat 11 Minor Site Plans 33 

  Borrow Pits 1 

TOTAL 169 

 
  

7%

0%

57%
2% 2%

32%

Planning Board Cases 

Small-Scale Map
Amendments, 3

Large-Scale Map
Amendments, 0

LDC Amendments, 25

Comp Plan Amendments, 1

Planned Unit Development
PUD 1

Rezoning Cases, 14



 

Page | 13  

 

 

Escambia County Board of Adjustment Cases 
(October 1, 2017 - September 30, 2018) 

 
 

CASE TYPE   

Administrative Appeals 3 

Conditional Uses 23 

Extensions to Development 
Orders 

0 

Variances 9 

 
 

 

Administrative 
Appeals

8%

Conditional Uses
66%

Extensions to 
Development 

Orders
0%

Variances
26%

Administrative Appeals

Conditional Uses

Extensions to Development Orders

Variances


	Agenda
	_16253
	Att1_Meeting Minutes May 7, 2019
	Att2_6 Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JUNE 2019

	Att3_Monthly action follow up
	SSA-2019-01
	Att1_Staff Analysis
	Comprehensive Plan
	Summary of Proposed Amendment:

	Att2_Working Case File01
	SSA-2019-01
	Staff Analysis
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Current FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	CRA Ensley Map
	Aerial Map
	Application
	Boundary survey
	Contract for sale
	Warranty Deed
	Historical Resource request and Response
	Wellhead map
	Presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8


	Att3_Draft Ordinance
	Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan Annual Report 2017_2018
	Att1_Comp Plan Annual Report 2017_2018

